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1
2 |] Good morning. This is a transcribed interview of Mr. Dustin

3 Thompson, conducted by the House Sect Commit to Investigate the January 6th
4 Attack on the United States Capitol pursuant to House Resolution 503.
5 At this time, I'll ask the witness to please state your full name and spell your last

6 nameforthe record
, Wr.Thompson. Dustin Thompson, T-h-o-m-p-+0-n.
. EE eon
9 Again, this will be a staff-led interview, although members may of course choose

10 to come in and ask questions. At this time, there are no members who are in the room

13 with us, ut well announce them f any ofthem do are
12 My name ] investigative counsel for the select committee. Also

1 with mein the room are| vestiestive course!NR.
1 investigate counsel; and[RRororssionlsaff member.
15 At this time, could counsel for the witness please state their name for the record?

1 Wr. Stewart, Yes. Myname is AndrewStewart,Ste-va-rt
uv I Thankyou,ir Stewart.
18 There is an official reporter transcribing the record of this interview. Please wait

19 until each question is completed before you begin your response, and we will try to wait

20 until your response is complete before asking another question.
n The stenographer cannot record nonverbal responses, ike shaking your head or
22 nodding your head, so’ important that you answer exch question with an audible
23 verbal response. Ifyou don't, | may prompt you.

u We ask you that you provide complete answers based on your est recollection of
25 events. Ifa questions not clea, please ask us to repeat tf you don't know the
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1 answer, please say so. You may only refuse to answer a question to preserve a privilege

2 recognized by the select committee, like the Fifth Amendment right against

3 seiermination
4 The first key point that | want to underscore is that this interview is voluntary. If

$ atany time you'd like to stop speaking with us, please say so.

. Slr, at. any ity wih to discus someting with our attorney in
7 private, please let us know, and we'll take a break so you both can have that

o  comenstion
9 Do you understand?

» Mr Thompson, Yeah,
u ee
12 Second, this interview is not under oath. However, because this is still a formal

13 select committee investigatory proceeding, you are obligated under Federal law to tell

16 the ruth to Congress, the same fou were peaking withthe FB or the OI.
15 Itis deliberately unlawful to provide -- sorry. It is unlawful to deliberately

16 provide false information to Congress. For this interview, providing false information

17 could result in criminal penalties for perjury and/or false statements.

18 Do you understand?

» Me Thompson, Yes
a
2a Third, you are not obligated to keep the fact of this interview and what we discuss

22 confidential. You are free to tell whomever you wish that you met with us, including the

23 prosecutor or judge on your case, or you can tell no one at all. That is your decision.

» Hower, we wi not dis the content of what we discs today unt properly
25 authorized for release by the chair and the rest of the committee.
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1 Do you understand?

2 Mr. Thompson. Yes.

ET————————
4 Department of Justice. We have no involvement with their ongoing prosecutions, and

5 the DOJ is nota partner with the select committee and its investigation whatsoever.

6 The select committee also is not a party to your criminal case and i not agreeing

7 tosubmit anything on yourbehalf toyour judge.

5 Do you understand?

9 Mr. Thompson. Yes.

10 I so to recap logistics, please let us know if you need any breaks or

11 would like to discuss anything with your attorney. We'll ry to take a break at about the

12 hour mark, just to make sure we all have enough stamina to get through the entire

13 interview.

u And, as|mentioned earer, thre may be several peopleasking questions. [I
15 [NESEnc EE i! chime in, and I'll be pausing at certain points to see if they

16 haveanything toadd. And, as with me, if they ask a question you don't understand,

17 please simply askus to repeat it or rephrase it

1 Allgood?

19 Mr. Thompson, Yes

20 Mr. Stewart. Yes, sir.

2 EXAMINATION

2 Q Sowell start with a few background questions just to begin. First, Mr.

25 Thompson,whereare you from?
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1 A Columbus, Ohio.

2 Q How long have you lived there?

3 A Ohioallmylife.

a Q And what is your educational background?

5 A Igraduated from the Ohio State University 2008 or ‘09. |think it was ‘09.

s Q Andwhat doyou do fora ving?

7 A Previously, 1 was doing furniture repair. I've kind of bounced around; I've

8 done several jobs. But that was my last one | was doing up until trial.

° Q Andthroughout the time in question - we're talking about2020into

10 2021-- what were you doing for your career?

n A Iwas doing pest control up until Marchof 2020, and then | was laid off on

12 March 17th. Then was unemployed until January 9th of ‘22.

3 Q Okay. Soyousay you were laid off in March 2020; is that correct?

1a A Yes

15 Q Was that related to the onset of the COVID-19 pandemic?

16 A Ibelieveso. Yeah.

7 Q Understood.

1 So, Boing back to that general timeframe, early to mid-2020, how closely would

19 you say you were following political events throughout former President Trump's term in

0 office?

2 A Yousaid during 20207

2 Q Yeh

2 A Yeah. I would say, like, pretty, like ~ | don't know - lke, pretty close,

24 guess, following stuff, like, daily news and stuf, listening to talk radio when | was

25 working.
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1 Q Understood. That's helpful

2 So you say youlistened to talk radio. Were thereother sources of information

3 like cable TV or certain websites that you used to gather information?

4 A Yeah. For websites, | mean, lie, it was Drudge Report and Zero Hedge

5 were two went tokind of daily. didn't watch much TV.

6 Q Okay. That's helpful

7 I'm gonna run through a coupleof social media applicationsand just ask fyou

8 used any of them to browse for news.

° A Yeah.

10 Q So, first, dchan?

u A I'vebeenonit. |wouldnever -Ididn't really understand how to use it.

2 Q Okay. 8kun?

13 A No.

1 Q No. Facebook?

15 A No.

16 Q parler?

1” A No.

18 Q Reddit?

19 A Yeah, I've been on Reddit.

20 Q Anyparticularsubreddits,or isthat - r/TheDonald?

21 A Like, itd be, like, the front page or something.

2 a okay.

23 A Like, main stories, | guess.

2 Q Okay, gotit. Telegram?

2 A No.
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1 Q  TikTok?

2 A Ive been ont, butfor wasting time. Nothing -

3 Q Understood.

4 A productive happens on there.

5 Q Twitter?

6 A Yeah, would be on Twitter. |followed a few people. No one I mean,

7 followed Trump, guess, but, like, outside that, nothing really, normally, politica.

8 Q Okay. Whatabout Gettr?

9 A No.

10 Q  TheDonald.win?

u A No.

2 a Gab?

13 A No

14 Q Okay. Discord?

15 A No.

16 There was, like, Qmap.pub was, like, a QAnon website that I'd have, like, posts

17 about QAnon drops, they were called, like and | would check those out.

18 Q Could you say the name of that website again?

19 A Qmap.pub.

0 Q  Qmap.pub. Okay.

2 50 would you say you subscribed to QAnon beliefs throughout 20207

2 A I mean,Ifound it interesting. | don't really see, like, an exactbelief system.

23 Ifeellike it was more asking questions and, you know, letting people come to their own

24 conclusions. But, yeah, | guess, you could say | read them and tried to make sense of it

2 Q When would you say you started engaging with QAnon theories? Perhaps
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1 abetter term than "beliefs."

2 A Yeah. would say, like, 2019 late, 2020, somethinglikethat.

3 Q Do you remember what motivated you to first start engaging with those

4 posts?

5 A Actually, | think] heard a bit about it on YouTube.

6 Q Okay. Doyou remember what channel or whose YouTube?

7 A Ithinkit was a guy called Plane Medic (ph).

8 Q Okay. And was there any particular issue that attracted you to that corner

9 oftheintenet?

10 A No. Itjust seemedjust inquisitive, you know, really, just to see what it was.

1 about.

2 Q Uh-huh. And for those of us who aren't as familiar, could you kind of walk

13 usthrough in a capsule form what youbelieved those questions to be goingafter and

14 kind ofasummationofyour engagement with QAnonorwhat you understood it to be?

15 A Yeah. mean, itwas about the deep state and people that are controlling

16 the government for evil instead of good.

uv Q And how did you view President Trump's relationshipto those worries,

18 theories?

19 A Imean,Ithought he had involvement in it. Like --

20 Q How doyou mean?

21 A Like or, I mean, like, that he~ if he wasn't necessarily contributing to it, he

22 was awareofit aswell.

23 Q Aware of the problem?

2 A Yeah, the posts. Yeah.

2 Q Oh the posts. Okay. Okay.
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1 And what about his role in this sort of dynamic you described as the deep state

2 controlling the government? As the head of the government, where does he fit in?

3 A Like, thought he was, you know, trying to do good,you know.

4 a okay.

5 A Yeah

6 Q Understood.

7 And you mentioned that you followed the former President on social media, on

8 Twitter. Were there any other accounts of his that you followed?

9 A No.

10 Q And of the sources of information we just ran through, were there ones that

11 yourelied on more than others, if you had to pick one or two that were most important

12 toyou?

13 A I mean,yeah,like, | would kindofjust look intoeachone,lke,daily for a few

14 minutes, you know, to see what was --what was new.

15 Q Great. Thankyou. Thisis allvery helpful.

16 So, more broadly speaking, did youconsideryourself to be a supporter of

17 President Trump?

18 A Yeah. Idd.

19 Q Andwhydid you consider yourselftobe a supporter?

0 A Tobe on the sideof good.

2 Q Could you walkus through that a ltle bit more?

2 A I mean, it just seemed like he wasgetting attackedfor things unfairly, and |

23 wanted to you know, it felt like he was the underdog. | kind of wanted to support the

24 underdog,

2 Q Were there particular issues where you thought hewas the underdog or



a

2 A Nothing stands out, no.

EE ——
a | wanted to move on, kind of going back to a timeline of 2020, but before | did, |

Le

10 Q  Solwanted to move back to March 2020. Mr. Thompson, you said that

12 you could talk a little bit more about how that impacted your life.

15 Like, you know, trying to find a new job was really hard during the time. Not a lot of

16 people were hiring. And, like, | had just gotten married 3 months prior in January, and |

18 stuff. So it was hard.

A———

23 restrictions being put in place, and President Trump was very prominently rallying against

24 those restrictions. Did you engage in those conversations online?

25 A No. just remember, like, the 2 weeks to flatten the curve, you know, and|



2

1 thought that was, like, a good idea at the time, but - no.

2 Q And as President Trump continued to sortof speak about these restrictions,

3 criticize these restrictions, moving into the spring and the summer, do you remember

4 that being an important element of your support for the former President?

5 A I mean, at the time, like, no. | didn't really pay much attention | feel like

6 noone knew exactly the best situation, and, you know, people were just trying different

7 things and, you know, just tryingwhatever they could, really. So

8 Q Okey. Gotit.

9 And you talked about checking some news sources daily, going onto some

10 QAnoninked forums. Would you say that that increased, sort of, after the pandemic

1 began?

2 A Yeah, because | had more free time. So, yeah.

13 Q And were there any ways in which you felt your perception started to

14 change because you had more time to look at these forums?

15 A No.

16 Q That's helpful.

7 50,2 couple months after the pandemic began, obviously there were a lot of

18 activities, protests over the summer, June and July, related to the police killings of George

19 Floyd and Breonna Taylor.

0 Were you involved in anyofthe protests surrounding those events?

2 A No. Actually, on -- it was Father's Day in July, there was a big protest in my.

22 neighborhood. And | went witha friend to Hocking Hills to just get away from it, try and

23 do some hiking, and ended up gettinga trespassing charge from a park ranger. But,

24 yeah, no, | was just trying to get away from that kind of stuff.

2 Q You were never involved in any organized counter-protests, anything like
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1 thar

2 A No.

3 Q Why did you want to get away from it?

a A Like, itjust — it almost seemed like — like a scary event. ~ Like, | mean,

5 people were riding on, like, the hood of trucks and they were, like, taking over the gas

6 stationandstuff. And Iwasjust you know, justa lotof banging andyelling around the

7 house. Like, just wanted to get away from it.

8 Q Understood.

9 And, obviously, over the summer, there was a lot of talk about the involvement of

10 antifain these events. President Trump talked about that quite a lot on Twitter and

11 elsewhere.

2 Were you ever concerned about that, for example, when the event was close to

13 your house?

1a A No. Itseemed ike it was more of a Black Lives Matter event that was near

15 myhouse,but wasn't sure. No.

16 Q Did you understand those groups to be related, Black Lives Matter and

17 antifa?

1 A No.

19 Q No. Okay.

1) How did you view President Trump's general posture towards those events over

21 the summer, if you have any thoughts on that at all?

2 A I mean, I guess | would say, like, the summer of 2020, he didn't think that

23 some of those were necessarily good, from my opinion.

2 Q Yeah. Are there any instances that you remember specifically?

2 A No.
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1 Q So, towards the middle of the summer, as these protests were really heating.

2 up, there were several groups that became more prominently involved in

3 counter-protests that we already mentioned: Black Lives Matter, and | mentioned the

4 possibility of antifa that was mentioned by President Trump quite a bit, but there were

Ss also documented instances of the Proud Boys and the Oath Keepers and other militia

6 groups like the Three Percenters kind of being in and around these events.

7 Were you aware of those groups being involved in the events, just through the

8 news you followed?

9 A Yeah, I had seen some altercations on YouTube and stuff, clashes, | guess

10 you could say.

1 Q And were aware of these groups -- Proud Boys, Oath Keepers -before the

12 summer?

13 A No.

1 Q And what was your opinion of them generally at that time?

15 A I mean, didn't know, like, reall, like, who was who, and didn't really try

16 andfigureitout. Itjust seemed like, you know, people with different political beliefs,

17 like, fighting.

18 Q Meaning that the Black Lives Matter activists and the Proud Boys, Oath

19 Keepers were differing political beliefs?

1) A Right

2 Q Andthat sense of them fighting, the conflict, was that concerning, was that

22 alarming to you, reading about it from home?

2 A Imean, its - it was concerning, | guess. Its - like, | was just - like, I elt

24 like the division in America was, you know, a, like, a bad place,probably the worst t's

25 beeninawhie. So-
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1 Q  Unhuh

2 A that was my takeaway from i, really.

3 Q And, at that point, do you remember anything salient from QAnon forums

4 talking about the protests and the ensuing unrest?

5 A Nothing particular, no.

s Q So, moving into the fall of 2020, do you recall the irs time you started to

7 hear concerns about the potential forelection fraud?

5 A Yeah, I don't remember exactly, but | remember - | don't remember exactly

9 whenitwas, butl remember hearing things like, "Yeah,if don't win, there was fraud," or

10 somethinglike that from Trump.

1 Q Did you have a view on ~ talking about before the election -- did you have a

12 view on these claims that the President was making?

13 A No. Ijust thought it was kindof talk. Like,didn't- no.

1 Q Allright. So, by the time election day 2020 came around, did you believe

15 that that the election was going to be stolen?

16 A Not-not-- no, not thedayof.

7 Q So when did you start to believe that the election may have been stolen?

1 A guess it wouldve been, like, the nextday. Like, just remember it was,

19 like, 3:00 2.m. and they were lie, you know, "We're gonna stop counting votes.

20 Everyonegotobed." Andthen, like, at 6:00 a.m, I got up and it was like, "Biden won

21 the President.” And was lie, " thought you were gonna stop counting the votes."

2 Q So did you watch President Trump's speech that night, the early morning of

23 the day after election day?

2 A Idon'tbelieve so.

2 Q Okay. So, generally,youwouldsay thatyour beliefs started toshift when
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1 yousaw the change in ballot totals the morning after?

2 A Correct.
3 Q And then in the days and weeks after, can you walk us through how your

4 beliefs evolved?

s A mean, at the time, there was alot oftheories, you know, being thrown
6 around, and I was just trying to follow them. But,a the time, it looked suspicious,

7 guess you could say

8 Q And were there any theories that were particularly influential in your mind?
5 AI don't think it was Detroit or something where they were, like, putting up
10 the poster board over the windows to keep people from looking in. It seemed like, you
11 know, it wasn't very transparent.

2 Q Were there certain parts of the country - you just mentioned Detroit

13 Were there certain parts of the country that you though the fraud was most prominent?
1 A No. Notatthattime, no.

* IccmoR
16 HE sco

1s Q So, Mr. Thompson, thanks againfor taking the time.

1 1 was lookingoveryour tial transcrip, and a couple of times you mentioned sort
20 of believing the outlandish stuff that Trump was saying at the time. ~ You believed his

21 claims about the election li, and even to the point that you just did't think President
22 Biden couldve won because Trump said so.

5 So was wondering, you know, trying to square wf is asking you about
24 here, how much of an influence didPresident Trump have on yourbeliefs that the

25 election was stolen?
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1 A Imean, I'd say quite abit. You know, like, he was the one saying it, and

2 that's where | was getting all my information from, basically, about the election, was

3 from, you know, Trump and the news, you know. But, basically, when he said it, |

4 believed it to be true.

5 Q And I'm hoping you can extrapolate on that a little bit. Is there a reason

6 you just believed President Trump?

7 A I mean, outsideofjust saying, like, you know, | wanted to. | guess | found

8 him believable.

9 Q Was is something about his personality, his politics, anything like that?

10 A I mean, like, yeah, he was a good speaker and, you know - but | just believed

11 himatthe time.

2 Q Were you talking to any friendsor family or even, you know, people online

13 who might have disagreed with you about the election claims?

1a A mean,| know |was talking to a buddy that also believed it was stolen and

15 some other people that said it wasn't, but yeah. Not online. Like, on the phone.

16 Q Sure. And how did those conversations with people who didn't think the

17 election was stolen go?

18 A I mean, like,they just didn't think that he - that Trump won, and they

19 thought Biden had won. And we kind of just agreedtodisagree first and --

20 Q Did you ever, you know, search online for evidence to counterbalance your

21 view of what President Trump was saying? Did you ever tryto check his claims?

2 A Yeah, no, that's something I've realized in hindsight, but no. | kind of was

23 just checking stuff that kind of affirmed his story and nothing related to the contrary at

24 thetime.

2 Q Great. Thankyou very much.
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2 ovI

4 about the election being stolen that had differing modes, differing culprits. But my

$ question would be to you, who did you think was responsible for the fraud, the stealing of

7 A Like, at the time? Like --

9 A 1 would say,like, just the way that the ballots were counted seemed

10 suspicious, | guess. So just the people who counted the votes. | mean -

12 ‘more of isolated incidents?

15 Q And you mentioned earlier both the idea of your personal support of

18 idea of the deep state controlling the government.

23 me believe that.
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1 A Yeah, | guess you could say that.

2 Q What did you think could happen if President Trump and his supporters

3 refused to say that his defeat was valid? Did you think there was a chance he could stay
4 inoffice?

5 A No. Ifelt ike it was already decided and it was gonna happen regardless

6 of

7 Q So, when President Trump was pushing for recounts and stopping the count,

8 you didn'tthink there wasany point to it?

9 A Atthat point, no, | did think ~yeah, the recounts. | thought there was a

10 chance at that time that something could be uncovered ordiscovered that could turn the

11 election, as far as, like, counting the ballots and stuff was concerned.

2 Q  Oh,okay. Gotit. Soin the first couple of weeks after the election, you

13 thought there was real chance that the result could be overturned.

1a A Yeah.

15 Q Okay. But then at some point, once those efforts failed, you figured there

16 was nothing left to do?

FY A Right

18 a okay.

19 But President Trump, obviously, kept that drumbeat of claims going even after the

20 recounts failed andafter those calls to stop the count failed. ~ So how did you interpret

21 his continued claims of fraud at that point?

2 A Imean, like, I thought he believed them. And, ike, | thought there was |

23 kind of believe them too, that there was fraud. But | don't know exactly where or what.

24 Butit seemed like it was possible, and |believed that.

2 Q So, obviously, there was alot of organizing on the ground surrounding the
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1 election results. And Im curious if you participated in any activites to protest the

2 results after election day.

3 A No.

a Q Talking about November, December.

5 A No.

s Q Nothing?

7 A No.

8 Q Did you ever travel to D.C. for events in November or December?

9 A No.

10 Q Did you make any financial contributions to "stop the steal" efforts?

1 A No.

2 Q  Atthis point did you have any affiliation with Proud Boys, the Oath Keepers?

13 A No.

1 Q Whatabout the Three Percenters?

15 A No.

16 Q  Groypers?

FY A No.

18 a Ne.

19 And we've talked a litle bit about QAnon. How would you say your engagement

20 with QAnon forums changed in the weeks and monthsafterthe election?

2 A From what recall like, he wasn't really ~ it wasn't really saying much about

20 the election, but, like, | mean,ifthere was, like, a new post, | would kind of just go to it,

23 read it, and then kind of see what other people were saying about it. But don't

24 remember anything offhand particularly.

2 Q And did youthink that there was any prominent threat posedbyantifain
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1 the, sort of, post-election moment?

2 A No.

3 Q You didn't think they had anything to do with the theft of the election?

a A No.

5 Q And so at some point you said that you stopped believing that there was

6 anything that could be done to reverse President Trump's loss. Do you remember about
7 when that happened?

8 A I'msorry. Could you repeat that?

9 Q Sure. So you said at some point you thought that it was game over and

10 that you couldn't overturn President Trump's loss, there was nothing he can do. Do you

11 rememberwhen that happened?

12 A Like, | would say it was probably towards the end of December, you know,

13 beginningof January. I'd say mid-December, end of December is when| first thought it

14 wasover, if nota little sooner.

15 Q So that was beforeyoudecided to come to D.C. for January 6th?

16 A Correct.

17 Q So can you tell us more about the factors that influenced yourdecision to

18 travel to D.C?

19 A Ijust remember Trump sayingit was gonna be, like, | thinkit was,awild

20 time. And, like, you know, fel like | wanted to go because, like, | hadn't gotten out,

21 hadn't been around people in a while, and, you know, these were gonna be, like,

22 like-minded people, you know, kind of, like, my people that | agree with. So just went

23 to be around those people.

24 Q Do you recall when you first decided to travel to Washington?

25 A Itwas just the day before or 2 days before. Itwas pretty last-minute,
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1 realy.
2 Q You mentioned that President Trump said it was gonna be a wild time.

3 There wasa tweet on December 19th where President Tramp first mentioned January 6th
a and said, "Be there, will be wild!" Do you recall seeing that tweet?

5 A Idon't think | saw it at the time. It was later in the month that| saw it, if

6 not beginning of January.
7 Q Butwhat do you think President Trump meant by "wild"?

8 A I'mean, | thought it was just kind of gonna be like a going-out celebration,

9 like a retirement partyor something, but -- you know, makes sense.

0 Q Yeah, itdoes.
un So you didn't think at that point when you were reading about what he was saying
12 about the event, what others were saying, you didn't think that there was a chance it

13 would result in him staying in the White House?

1 A No

16 EE se

uv oI
18 Q Mr. Thompson, you mentioned seeing the tweet later or, you know, you

19 knew that it would be a wild time. The tweet also talks about the "stop the steal” -- the

2 event was sometimes called "stop the steal” event
2 Did youreally think that it was only going to be sort ofa retirement party? Or
22 didyou expect President Trump to continue to claim the election was stolen?
23 A Ifigured he would continue to claim it. | didn't know it was a "stop the

20 steal event. | remember seeing a lot of signs when | got thereaboutthat. But kind
25 of thought it was, like, forgone conclusion by that point, that there was no stopping it,
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1 bute

2 Q And were people who were talking about going to January 6th, or anyone

3 else online, were you also seeing other people say they expected January 6th to be this

4 ind of retirement party?

5 A No. Imean, didn‘ really see anybody saying anything about what they

6 thoughtitwas gonna be. Just yeah.

7 oYI—

5 Q 50, obviously, the event was branded "Save America." "Stop the steal" was

9 also partof the branding onlinefor the event.

10 Did that in any way conflict with your idea that it would be a retirement party?

1 A Iguess not, no. You know, like,| mean, just thought at that point there.

12 was nothing really that could be done to stop the steal.

13 EE so coanead,

1 EEE Oh, ro. Youcangoon,EE

1 oI
16 Q So what websites or social media apps did you review to find more

17 information about the raly itself?

1 A Ibelieve it was just, like, Twitter, probably, where | got information about

19 thewhen and where.

20 Q Did youever oin any groups on Facebookorelsewhere about the rally?

2 A No. Iwas never on Facebook. |wasn'ton any Twitter groups or anything

2 like that either.

2 Q So, ultimately, what would you say was your goal in traveling to D.C. on

24 January 6th?

2s A Justto be with like-minded people and, you know, just to have a good time.
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1 Q Were you concerned about the potential for violence?

a A Because | felt likeit was, like, the last -- like, myonly chance to see Trump

5 and, like -- so, like, the last chance to kind of see him and be around his supporters,

8 So | wanted to move more into your arrival to D.C. and your preparation to come,

12 Q Mr. Thompson,so,nottoharponthis too much, but in yourtrial

13 transcript -- you know, we'll get to the speech as you're listening to it. Afterlisteningto

15 being at risk, the country being destroyed.

16 Were anyofthose thoughts in your mind aheadof January 6th? Did you

18 would do something to, you know, prevent the end of American democracy?

© a om
2 EEeoJ

23 Q Mr. Thompson, when did you actually leave from Columbustotravel to D.C.?
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1 A Like, believe it was, like it was late, about 6:00 or 7:00 p.m.

2 Q So you said you had decided a couple of days beforehand. ~ And then you

3 justleft that night before?

a A Yeah, if not - I mean, I think, really, kind of decided i the day before, on the

5 Sth,togo. Anditwas just kind of figuring out like, 1 was gonna go, maybe, with two

6 people, and then it just ended up being one other person. And we left that night of the

7 sth

8 Q And who was that other person?

9 A That drove, was Robert, my co-defendant.

10 Mr. Stewart. What's his last name?

1 Mr. Thompson. Lyon

3 Q Robert Lyon?

1a A Yeah.

15 Q And how did you know Mr. Lyon?

16 A We have been friends fora while. Kind of met through another friend,
17 friend ofa friend.

18 Q And did Mr. Lyon express similar ideas to you about what January 6th was?

19 A Yeah, I believe so. He wanted to go kind of because he thought it would be

20 agood time.

2 Q Whose idea was it to travel to D.C.2

2 A Ibelieve it was my idea to go.

2 Q And did you end up staying in D.C. or somewhere else surrounding?

2 A Ibelieve we stayed in Maryland.

2 Q Okay. And you arrived the night of the 5th. Did you do anything when
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1 yougotthere?

2 A No. We got there early morning, like, 1:00 or 2:00 a.m., so we just checked

3 inandwent tosleep.

a Q And do you remember where in Maryland you stayed, the name of the

5 hotel?

6 A Notoffhand, no.

7 Q Did you meetupwith anyone when you got there, oryou just went right to

8 bed?

9 A No, we just went straight to sleep. We had tried to find some food and

10 everywhere was closed, so we just went to bed.

1 a Okay.

2 And I know | asked this before, but | wanted to reiterate. Did you expect there

13 tobe any violence the next day?

1a A ldidnot.

15 Q Did you do anything to prepare yourself for the next day?

16 A No. Imean, ike, besides, you know, packing some drinks and, lke, we

17 brought, like, a Bluetooth speaker kind of stuff, but outside of that, no.

18 Q Did you bring any equipment with you?

19 A No

2 Q There was no protective gear?

2 A No.

2 Q Novests, helmets, anythingofthat sort?

2 A No.

2 Mr. Stewart. Tel himaboutthevestyou found.

2 Mr. Thompson. | had found a vest at the Eclipse rally and put it on at that time
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1 before walking to the Capitol, but | didn't bring it with me.

2 ovI
5 Q Okay. Sothisisthe bulletproofvestthatyou were wearinga the Capitol?
. A Comect
< Q Okay. Soyou found that the next day?

s A Comet
7 Q  We'llget to that in a few.

8 And just while we're on the night before, did you have any awareness, going into

9 the 6th, that the next day was the day that Congress was going to certify President

10 Biden's victory?

u A Yeah, I wasawareof that
12 Q Did you have any awareness of the Vice President's role in overseeing.

13 Congress that next day?

1 A Not until the day of the 6th did|know that he, Mike Pence, playeda ole in
5
16 Q Okay.

A wasnt aware of that.
18 Q That's helpful.

19 But when you went tosleepthe night of the 5th, you did not believe there was

20 anything that you or anyone else could do to influence Congress. Is that correct?

2 A comet
2 a Alright.
23 Well, we're just about to get to the 6th itself. We're only at the 45-minute mark,

24 but would you want to take a 10-minute break? We're at about the halfway point.

25 Mr. Stewart. We could even do, like, a 5-minute break, if you wanted to do that.
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1 I Groot so let's say wel go back on the record at 91557

2 Mr. Stewart. Okay.

3 Hl ce

a Thanks very much, Mr. Thompson.

5 Mr. Thomson. Yep.

5 Recess.)

7 I1 right. So we can go back on the record at 9:55 a.m.

8 ovI
9 Q And we'll move nowto discuss the eventsof January 6th tself.

10 So, Mr. Thompson, | know you attended the rally on the Ellipse on the 6th. Can

11 you just walk us through what happened when you and Mr. Lyon woke up that morning?

2 A Yeah. Pretty much, we got up and just kind of cleaned up and got out of

13 the hotel kind of the quickest (ph) way that we could.

1a Q And you, at that point, you went towards the Ellipse?

15 A Wecalled for an Uber. And didn't know exactly where to go. | kind of

16 just told the Uber driver to take us where the people were, the Washington Monument,

17 somewhere in that general area.

1 Q And could you describe the scene when you got there?

19 A He could only get, like, so close, but we could see people walking, and just

20 kindofgot out and followed them.

2 Q And how close did you end up gettingto the stage?

2 A At some point, we had circled around, and, like, we could see the stage and

23 saw, like, the security magna-things to go through, but we didn't wanna go through those.

24 Just seemed like a hassle; there was this huge line. So we just kind of stayed out and

25 watched it on the screen and listened to it on the speakers.
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1 Q  Soyou did not want to go through the magnetometers.

2 A Yeah, there wasaline,so it seemed likea hassle, you know, waiting in the

3 line.

4 Q Could you describe the crowd, what the crowd was like outside of the.

5 magnetometers?

6 A large. There wasa lot of people.

7 Q What was the mood like?

8 A Itwas - people were happy, joyous.

9 Q And, at that point, did you hear people talking about the possibilty that you

10 still could stop the steal?

u A Ithinkpeople were saying it, but | 1 guess|don't know what they meant by

ni

13 Q So, when you kind of got into the crowdon the morning of the 6th before:

14 the President was speaking, you still were under the impression this was a retirement

15 party, asyousaid?

16 A Like I mean, | felt like | knew something was gonna happen, but | just

17 didn't know what. And that's kindof why | came to t. It just seemed like something.

18 was gonna happen, and | just wanted to be there for it. | didn't know what it was, but

19 feltlike it was an important - important day.

20 Q  Thatidea that it was an important day, that was what motivated you to

21 comein thefirstplace to Washington?

2 A Like, yeah, you cansay that, yeah. |believethat.

23 Q And you said "something important,you just didn't know what." Could you

24 expand on thata little bit? What kindofthings did you think could happen?

2 A Like, I really didn't have any idea. 1 just felt like | just kind of had that



1 feeling that something was gonna happen, but | didn't know what.

2 Q Something related to the election?

, A 1 hough, be, maybe Trump wagon do something kin of candi or
4 something, but,|mean, | just -- | didn't know what was gonna happen, but | just felt

$ something would.

. a we Thompnon?
7 A Yeah?

8 Q So you said you thought Mr. Trump might do something outlandish, and

—
10 A Oh. Ijustdidn't know what he was -- | thought maybe that was a possibility

Horseman been
12 Q So the mood of the people, you said, was joyous and happy?

13 A Yeah. The crowd seemed that way, yes.

Pp Q Dit vousee anyone whospeared tobe aed?
15 A I did not.

16 Q Anyone in bulletproof vests, helmets, tactical gear?

u A Norstthanstotthaioe
18 Q  Notatthe Ellipse. So did you see anyone whowas in that gear onyour way

1 10D. oronyourway to The Mal?
© A he

2 BE sue. Goahead

» oI
24 Q Back to the magnetometers, Mr. Thompson, did you see people, like,

25 discarding backpacks or putting their clothing or anything else outside of the



u

2 A Yeah.

4 A Yeah. |was seeing these, like, piles of backpacks and flagpoles. And

$ some people were watching that for other people. And | just -- there were lots of piles

7 Q Did anyone talk about why they were, you know, putting their bags off to the

8 side?

9 A Yeah. Because they weren't allowed to take them in.

10 Q Were they talking about why they weren't allowed to take them in? Was

12 A I didn't hear them talk about that.

13 Q Okay.

15 standing in line?

18 backpacks? An estimate, like, mid-morning, early morning?

23 Q So when you saw those piles of equipment outside of the magnetometers,
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1 Q  Didit ever occurtoyou that there could be weapons that could not go

2 through the magnetometers in those bags?

3 A No. Ifeltlike I had never been to anything where the President was at

4 before, and so just felt like, you know, i's the President and he was just very cautious

5 about, you know, not letting anything in.

6 Q Uhhh,

7 And you said that you picked up a bulletproof vest at some point in the morning.

8 Did that occur during this period when you were outside the magnetometers?

9 A Itwas after the speech, and everyone was kind of going towards the Capitol.

10 We, like, circled back through the crowd and waited to see if anyone was gonna take i,

11 basically, and we didn't see anyone. It was laying next toa dumpster. And we kind of

12 said that, like, no one's gonna take this, and so we just took it.

13 Q Okay. Well, Idowant to get back to that, but we can talk about the speech

1 first

15 50 did you hear any other speakers on the stage before President Trump?

16 A don'tbelieve so.

7 Q And can you describe your reaction to President Trump's speech generally?

18 And thenwecandive into somemorespecifics.

19 A Imean,it seemed uplifting. It seemed, like, kindofsimilarto what I've

20 heard him say in the past, just | do remember him saying, like, that he was gonna go to

21 the Capitol and -- but it was after his speech that | asked people, Iwas like, "Are you going

22 tothe Capitol?" And they said, "Yes." And then | just kind of followed the group there.

23 Buti remember that from his speech.

2 Q So you were surprised to hear the President talking about going to the.

25 Capitol?
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1 A Yeah. Iwas. |didn't know that that was a that was happening.

2 Q  sowhatimpact did those remarks have on you?

3 A Well, Iwas like, "Well if he'sgoing there, | wanna go there," you know, see

4 what's happening.

5 Q What was your understanding of what President Trump wanted to do at the

6 Capitol?

7 A Iguess stop the certification, but | just didn't know how that was gonna

8 happen, really. But| wanted to go and see what was happening.

9 Q And why do you think he was asking others to come with him?

10 A You know, strength in numbers, | guess, you know, and show their support.

u Q Do you recall the President saying during the speech, If we don't fight like

12 hell you're not gonna haveacountry anymore"?

13 A Yeah, I don't know if| remember thatper se, but| kind of got that

14 impression from the overall speech.

15 Q And when the President so what did you take that to mean? That was

16 the overall impression?

7 A mean, I felt like it was more, like, a figure of speech than, you know,

18 actually, like, calling for violence.

19 Q Anda one point the President also told the crowd that they have to show

20 strength and that they won't be able to take back the country with weakness.

2 Doyou recall thoseparticular remarks?

2 A Um

23 Mr.Stewart. Rememberthe tone [inaudible],

20 Mr. Thompson. Yeah. Yeah, like - | mean, yeah, "Be strong," you know,

25 “Weakness isn't gonna get you anywhere." Like, kind of more of, ike, the normal
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$ certification.LT rt
7 President sent everybody to march to the Capitol, you said, "I mean,ifthe President's

8 giving you, like, almost an orderto do something, | felt obligated to do that." And a little

9 while later, you also said that you were ordered by the President to go to the Capitol.

10 So did you take President Trump's speech as a directive?Loo
12 Q And why were you willing to listen to that order?

13 A I mean, he was the Commander in Chief, you know, so | felt that, you know,Ln
15 Q And by listening to him, you understood President Trump wanted you to join

16 him in the effort to stop the certification of the vote at the Capitol?Lo
18 Q And did you have any expectation of how that plan would go into effect atDea .
2a Q But the idea that - the idea of going to stop the certification, did thatLlLo
x oILn
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1 A Honestly, |just thought it was cool. | didn't have one. | just --and Robert

2 was wearinga backpack, and so | just put it on. But, just because | didn't have one,|

3 thinkthat's why | grabbed it

4 Q I'm just drilling that down a litte bit more, because, obviously, it's cold; |

5 would assume you were wearing a coat, right?

6 A Ihada sweatshirt, you know,a hoodie.

7 Q So, if you were gonna embark on a walk ~it's not the shortest walk in the

8 world from the Ellipse to the Capitol. Bulletproof vest, added weight. Why would you

9 pick that up in the midst ofall this hubbub if you thought there was no risk of violence?

10 A I mean, I also kind of saw it as, like, better to be safe than sorry, you know,

11 like sol just putiton.

2 Q Could you expand on that? Why did you have to be safe? From whom?

13 A I mean, it felt like -- kind of like the tension was rising and, you know, that,

14 like, something was gonna happen. So just thought, you know, | should maybe just be

15 prepare in case anything happened.

16 Q And did you mean tension between protesters? Tension between

17 protesters and law enforcement? Protesters and other groups?

18 A No, I would just say just the crowd seemed more, like, more energized and

19 angryafter the speech and when they were walking. And then, when | cut back through

20 allof them, like, they just were more, like seemed, ike, on a mission to get where they

21 were going.

2 Q Do you think they also thought they were following the President's orders?

23 Isthatyour senseofthe crowd?

2 A Yeah.

2 Q  So,ina way, these people who were angry were on the same mission that
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1 youfelt you were on?

2 A Correct.

3 Q And what did you understand them to be doing?

a A I mean, just kind of following the President's orderof we were gonna goto

the Capitol and just, thought, like, protest more, you know, so

s Q  Togoon to protest more. You described the crowd as joyous and

7 celebratory earlier, before the speech. Why angry now?

5 A mean,itjust seemed like, as the day went on and as we were - like, once

9 we got there, people ~ it wasn't as happy. It was more anger.

10 Q Butit seems like you perceived that angerbefore you marched, because

11 that's when you picked up the vest, right, before you marched up to the Capitol?

2 A Like, just grabbed it just to have it. Like, it wasn't ~ | mean, like, | thought

13 something could happen, but | didn't know what, and | just thought it would be better to

14 haveit than not have it.

15 Q  'mtrying to understand. You had seen the President speak, and the

16 speechwas ending. Andthat's why you had come to D.C. The crowd was getting

17 angrier. You were concerned that something might happen, to the extent that you

18 actually picked up a bulletproof vest.

19 Why go to the Capitol if the crowd was angrier and if you were concerned that

20 something could happen,as you've just said?

2 A Iwanted to see what was gonna happen. | wasn't really scared by violence,

22 youknow. |just wanted to go see what was gonna happen.
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1

2 (012am)

. BE ven f that something wasviolent?
s Mr. Thompson. | mean | knew | wasn't going to be violent, but | just wanted to
6 sec whatwas happening.

, oI
8 Q Mr. Thompson, did you geta sense of what was making the crowd angrier as
9 they were heading towards the Capitol?

10 A Mo.
n Q Did you hear people talking about Vice President Pence and his decision to

12 goahead and, you know, certify the electoral college vote?

3 A Mo.
14 Q Anything about Congress in general or Speaker Pelosi?

15 A mean, people were just angry. | heard some chants of, you know, like,

16 "Get Pelosi" or "Where's Pelosi"; you know what|mean? But it just seemed like
17 everyone was just angry at Congress, Members as a whole.

1 I 1 vote for the record that Representative Kinzingerhas joined the

19 Webex
20 Welcome, Mr. inzinger. Feel ree to jump nif you have any questions,

2 obviously.
2 So, Mr. Thompson, the anger then was driven by President Trump's speech, or
23 wasit natural, you know, before the speech that just kind of happened?

2 Mr. Thompson. No. | would say it came from his speech and then just kind of

25 transgressed into the walking to the Capitol
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1 I harkyou.
2 raovou, [I

3 And welcome, Mr. Kinzinger.

‘ ovI
5 Q Mr. Thompson, do you remember the President making any remarks about

6 Vice President Pence during the speech itself?
7 A Yeah. Like, yeah, he has to dohis job and not certify the vote.

8 Q And, before this point, you were unaware that Vice President Pence had a

9 role inthe proceedings that day, correct?
10 A Comet.
1 Q So, at that point, was it your belief that there could be something done to
12 overturn the results of the election?

13 A Yeah. Yeah. |guess| thought Pence could do something at that point.

1 Q And so you talked earlier about believing you were undera Presidential
15 directive to march to the Capitol.

16 In your mind, was that related to making sure the Vice President did the right

17 thing?
18 A Like, me personally being able to influence the Vice President or the crowd

19 asawhole?
20 Q Exactly.
2a A Yeah. |mean, |thought maybe therewasachance, you know. And, at

22 the time, Iwas, you know - I did't see any harm in lke protesting to see if they could
23 influence, you know, his decision.

2 Q And you mentioned that, while you were marching, you heard chants of “Get
25 Pelosi," "Get Nancy," "Where's Nancy?" Is that correct?
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1 A Yeah. Anditwas seemed like it was more directed towards Pelosi, if |

2 had tosay like any one Member of Congress or the Vice President, ike that would

3 seemed like the kind of one person people were focused on from where | was at.

4 Q And did that raise any concerns for you?

5 You mentioned and just discussed that you picked up a bulletproof vest just to be

6 safe, better safe than sorry.

7 What did you take those comments about the Speaker to mean?

8 A ljusttookitas talk. | didn't think that anything was going to happen to her

9 oranything ike that. 1 just took it as people being angry andsaying things.

10 Q 50, to summarize, it was yourbelief that the President had asked his

11 supportersto stage another ray at the Capitol?

2 A Uh-huh,

13 Q And you believed that he would be there?

14 A Yes ldid. Yup.

15 Q Was it your impression as you started to march that he was marching with

6 you?

7 A No. Actually, | had seen like an armored black vehicle leave and head in

18 thatdirection. And someone had mentioned that, oh, Trump might be in there going to

19 Capitol. Sol saw that, andwith his comment saying hewasgoing tobe there, | thought

20 that that seemed possible.

2 Q So, when you saw the armored vehicle and you believed itwasthe President

22 going towards the Capitol, did that influence you in your decision to march thatway?

23 A Yeah. Yes,itdid

2 Q Can you expandon that?

2 A Iwas pretty much going there already, but that kind of re-enforced it, | guess
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1 youcouldsay. But,yeah.

2 Q  Reenforced the importance of what he had said to you?

3 A Re-enforced the idea of goingto the Capitol.

4 Q And, again, thiswas going to the Capitol with the goal of trying to influence

5 Congress, correct?

6 A Correct.

7 Q And the Vice President?

8 A Comet.

9 Q 50 could you walk us through what happened as you got to the Capitol

10 complexitself?

1 A Yeah. Like, I remember walking up and like talking with some people.

12 And was, like, asked ~ | was like, isn't there going to be like security, or you know 1

13 think said fencing or something.

14 And the guy was like: ~ Yeah, we're going to break throught.

15 And|waslike: Okay.

16 And then, by the time | got in there, lie everyone was already on the Capitol

17 Grounds, and| believe already had entered the Capitol. | remember, when | walked up,

18 the first thing| saw was these, | would say, two or three people on a motorized window

19 washing thing, and they - | was like - they got it working, and they went up to the second

20 floorand had something, and they'rehitting the windows. And | just couldn't believe

21 what!was seeing at that point.

2 Q So you said that, when you were still outside the Capitol, you had an

23 exchange, and someone told you that you were going tobreak down the fencing around

24 the Capitol.

2 At that point, why stay? What did you think was going on?
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1 A Imean, | just wanted to see for myselfwhat was happening.

2 Q What wasitthat you thoughtwashappening?

3 A didn't think people were going to be able to break into the Capitol, but |

4 just wanted to get as close as | could to see what was really happening.

5 Q Did you come across any police barricades as you approached the building?

6 A didnot.

7 Q So did you understand them to have all been removed by other protesters at

8 that point?

9 A I mean, theywere Iseen themlikekindof strewn about and like but

10 they weren't acting as barricades

1 Q And, at that point, you were wearing your bulletproof vest, correct?

2 A twas.

13 Q As you saw the barricades strewn about and protesters, kind of, scaling the

14 wallsofthe Capitol, as you described, did you become more concerned about the

15 possibility of violence?

16 A Notatthattime. Iwasstill just walking, and |didn't see anyviolence at

17 thattime.

18 Q Did you think that the people who were approaching the Capitol were

19 allowed to approach the Capitol?

0 A thought that there would be some level of, you know, of like where they

21 wereallowed to go and where they weren't. But | wasn't sure where that boundary

2 was

23 Q Did you think they were allowed to be on the motorized window washing -

2 A Yeah. No.

2 Q You didn't think they were allowed tobreak the windows?
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1 A Correct.

2 Q Did you believe that this is what President Trump was hoping would happen

3 orwanted to happen when he told you to march to the Capitol?

4 A guess Iassume so because it just seemed — | would just say,like, almost

5 like natural - like these people were doing was | mean, it just seemed like it was.

6 happening like - | don't know if it was because they wanted to do it oriftheyfelt that it's

7 what Trump wanted, but it was just — it was what was happening.

8 Q So you thought that the movement towardsthe building was the organic

9 movement of the crowd?

10 A Comet.

u Q And how didyougetclose to thebuilding yourself?

2 A ike, walking up?

13 Q Yeah. Doyou remember where you walked up, things like that?

14 A ljust--I was in the grass, and|don't know like whichside of the building or

15 anything.

16 Q But were the doors open when you approached it?

7 A No. No. When after| saw the people on the window washer, there

18 wasa door tomy left that | just kind of opened and people started going into it.

19 Q  Sothisisbelow afewstoriesbelow the peoplewhoarebreaking the

20 windows?

2 A Yeah. Thisis on the groundlevel.

2 Q And about what time did this occur?

23 A ltwasafter2:30. | would say 2:30, alittle after.

2 Q Andwhydid you make the decision toenter the building?

2 A 1just sawpeople going in and followed them in.
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1 Q Was it your belief that you were stil following President Trump's directive

2 when you entered the building?

3 A Yeah. mean, Iknow |have my own control, but | was just kind of doing

4 Whatever everyone else was doing.

5 Q What did you think wasthe goal of entering thebuilding for you?

6 A I mean, | just wanted to see what was going on in there, but | didn't really

7 haveagoal.

8 Q Did you hear people making similar chants about Speaker Pelosi or Vice

9 President Penceorothers as you surged into the building with others?

10 A No. They were just chanting "USA, USA."

u Q Did you encounter any law enforcement as you entered the building?

2 A No, not the first time. | remember on the second time seeing them, like,

13 down the hallway, kind of like behind like a metal gate, lie gearing up to come out, and

14 that's when left the second time.

15 Q Okay. Sowell getto the second time. But, for now, just focusing on the

16 first entrance to the Capitol.

7 A Yeah. |didn't see officers the first time.

18 Q Did you believe that you were breaking any laws at the time when you

19 entered the Capitol?

0 A I mean,Itooka bottleofliquor. | knowthat's wrong. |mean, people

21 were saying it's the people's building, but | knew people weren't supposed to entering it

22 likethis. Ifeltiike so, yeah. Iknew itwaswrong. Yeah.

23 Q Why did you feel compelled do it anyway?

2 A twas just kind of mob mentality maybe, like just kindofgoingwith where

25 people were going. | really — I'm still working on why | did what | did that day, but | just
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1 knowl regret
2 I 1homoson, do you think — you mentioned that you went in
3 because President Trump - was part of President Trump's order.
. Was it your impression that President Trump was directing you and the crowd to

dosomething wrong,to do something unlawful?
. Mr. Thompson. 1 thought by maybe just our presence, ike, that that's what he
7 wanted to stop the certification
s JI s- = vor imovession thtentering th buildingwas part of what
9 President Trump wanted you to do to top the certification?
10 Mr. Thompson. | mean, yeah, you couldsaythat.
un EE ---H
vw EEE mor. avibaves custo
1 Hl oo
} o
15 Q Can you walk us through what happened when you got into the building the
16 firsttime? Whatwasthe scene like inside?
w A Chaos. People were ~ I went in the door, and then the first door on the
18 right was the Senate Parliamentarian’ office, and | went i there, and there was people
19 raiding the fridge and throwing papers all over the place. 1 5aw a guy like jump and kick
20 a door and like knocka panel out of i, trying to - the door was blocked by a bookcase on
21 theotherside. Iwas ustrecording stuff on my phone. That was about i,
2 Q Why were yourecording things on your phone?
5 A I mean, Iwas | couldn't belive what was seeing, you know, and then
20 was itsjust to document it really and prove it was real
2 Q What was going through your mind as you entered the Pariamentarian's
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1 office and sawotherindividuals ransacking it?

2 A I mean, I thought this was, lie, their way of, you know, expressing

3 themselves or getting justice, like, you know, but | just I don't know. ~ At the time,|

4 don'tknow what | was thinking, but|was just like this ispretty crazy.

5 Q So you said it was a way of expressing themselves, at getting justice.

6 Did you view it as a form of protest to tryto get Congress todo the right thing, as

7 the President said?

8 A Yeah. Yeah. That's how they wanted to protest, so | guess, yeah, that

9 makessensetome. Yeah, that that's how they wanted to protest.

10 Q  Atthat point, as you got into the building, did you sill think there was a

11 chance that the election certification could be delayed?

2 A Yeah. Once saw people in the building, like, I thought that they might

13 havetodelayit.

14 Q And, in your mind, did that mean that this had been a success, the

15 operation, the orders that had been given at the rally?

16 A Yeah. Iguessso, yeah.

7 Q And, in the office of the Parliamentarian, you also took some items, correct,

18 youmentioned earlier?

19 A Right

0 Q  Itwasabottleof liquor and something else?

2 A Yeah. The second time it was a coat rack.

2 Q Okay. So the first time you tooka bottle liquor. And could you just walk

23 usthrough what happened as you took the item?

2 A Yeah. Soltookthe bottle liquor out, took asip of it, and gaveitto Robert

25 whol believe put itin his backpack and then told him that he needed to come in and see



a

1 what was going on in there. Some and him went back in. Iwas -

2 Q Sorry. I'mtrying to getit clear. So youtook the liquor bottle, and then.

3 youkind of went back outside and got Mr. Lyon?

a A Right

5 Q  Atthat point, you still had not encountered any law enforcement?

6 A Ihadn't seenany.

7 Mr.Stewart. Explain to him.

5 Mr. Thompson. | saw in the photo that there was one in the doorway pointed to

9 the outside, but at the time, | hadn't seen him. Too much commotion going on.

10 Mr. Stewart. Just, for your reference, in the government's position on

11 sentencing, when he says “photo,” there is a photo showing him exiting the first time, and

12 maybe feetfurther into the building, there's, I think, two or three law enforcement.

13 There's a crowd between Mr. Thompson and the law enforcement. So he didn't

14 necessarily see them, but they were there. And then the same itrueforthe second

15 time. |don'tremember if you saw them.

16 Mr. Thompson. ~ Uh-uh.

FY Mr. Stewart. There was law enforcement sort of preventing people from going.

18 further into the building,

19 Mr. Thompson. ~ Right.

1) Mr. Stewart. Those images he's referring to are in the government's position of

21 sentencing and were also exhibits during the trial, just for your

2 I -cersiood. Thank you, Mr. Stewart.

» o
2 Q So, essentially, both times you entered, you only went intothat first hallway

25 near the doorway?
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1 A Yeah. And! feel like — well the second time, | saw like further down the

2 hallway that there was armed guards and like geared up like with riot gear. And |

3 believe those other offices were kind of like plain clothes officers, but they were probably.

4 preventing people from going further down the hallway. But, yeah,Ijust went in the

5 door and went - right in the first door on the right was the office, and so | didn't see

6 them down the hallway further. |guess

7 Qo you went back into theoffice with Mr. Lyonat this point?

5 A Right

9 Q And you proceeded to try to take a coat rack at this point?

10 A Atfirst, I took a video of just, like, everything that was kind of like -- what the

11 scene was of the room, and then there was this like radio. And | thoughtat the time it

12 was like a walkie-talkie, and we each took one, and then | grabbed a coat rack on the way

13 out

14 Q So the same question as asked with the liquor you took the first time: Why

15 did you think it was the right thing to do to take the coat rack?

16 A Ithinkreally just | wasn't thinking. | don't know what | was why | took

voi

18 Q You mentioned earlier that people were saying, "This is the people's House,"

19 things of that nature. Were those kind of thoughts going through your mind when you

20 were inthe Parliamentarians office?

2 A Yeah. Yeah. Like, maybe it was like the people's property, and yeah.

2 Q And did you hearother folks when you were in the officeeither time talking

23 about the joint session to certify the election?

2 A Notwhile Iwas inside there, no. | don't remember really anything of the

25 conversation. There was just lotofyelling.
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1 Q Okay. Chanting "USA," that kind of thing?

2 A Yup.

3 Q Werepeople expressingsupportforPresident Trump when they were in the

4 building?

5 A Yeah.

6 Q Through chantsor

7 A Yeah.

8 Q Can you explain how?

° A I mean, I feel like just | mean, it's kind of hard | guess, but just by being.

10 there, and like you knew they were supporting Trump and what they thought they were

11 doing was probably what Trump wanted them to do.

2 Q Is that sill kind of what you were thinking as you were in the building the

13 second time?

1a A Yeah. Like! said, | don't know what | was thinking really, but | was

15 just-yeah. Itshardtosay. |don'treallyknow. Still working through that.

16 Q And you mentioned earlier, just ticking through the topics that we had

17 discussed, on your way to the Capitol, there was some conversation about the Vice

18 President and some conversation about Speaker Nancy Pelosi,

19 Did either of those officials get mentioned by folks while you were in the Capitol?

20 A Ithinkl heard some people saying, you know, "Where is Pence” or "Where is

21 Pelosi" but, | mean, there was justa lot going on, but, | mean, people were saying a lot of

22 things.

23 Q And what did you think they meant when they were yelling "Where is

20 Pence? Where is Pelosi?"

2 A I mean, they thought -I think that they could get to them or something, that
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1 they could stop the certification.

2 Q When you say “get to them," what do you mean by that?

3 A I mean, that's what | tooktheir comments to mean, you know, like they're

a Q Did you was it your understanding that there was an intention to physically

5 harm the Vice PresidentortheSpeaker?

6 A felt that some people wanted to do that, yes.

8 doyou remember how you felt about that?

9 Mr. Thompson. Yeah. 1 was happy at the time. | thought it was likea victory.

10 I oh Do vou remember talking to people about it, or did you

11 hear people talking about that?

2 Mr. Thompson. Not at the time, no. | don't even remember exactly ike when |

13 knew it was delayed, but it was just like at some point that| had found out and was just

14 happy. People were happy about it. That's alll remember.

15 I 2: tot 2 victory for the crowd or a vitory for resident Trump or

16 some combination of the two?

FY Mr. Thompson. Yeah. | would say, yeah, the two because I'm sure the crowd

18 thought that Trump would have been happy, and the crowd was also happy.

19 I ocyou seo it asPresident Trump's orders had worked out, they had.

20 won the day, they had won the battle?

2 Mr. Thompson. Yeah, inaway. Yeah. But we had kindof accomplished what

22 he wanted to accomplish in having a delayed.

2 Q  Soisitfair tosay that the chaos that you were a part of inside the building

25 wasalsoinawaypartofthatorder?
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1 A Yes
2 Q Howse?
3 A Like, just by being there and kind of causing havoc and stuff was what he
4 wanted and what people were doing.
s Q And itwas what he wanted because it would delay Congress from
6 completingits duties?

7 A Correct.
s JR his woud be a goo time if Mr. Kinzinger or anyone ls had any
9 questions

10 Mr. Kinginger, No. I'mgood. Thankyou
1 I oko
2 I ove a uestongoingway backJ vou aregoingto
13 transition to after January 6th. But if you're working through the day, | can hold off.
1 IVorkingthough the day, but go ahead
5 HE vo boidofr

1 orI
w Q So, Mr. Thompson, thankyou for talking us through all ofthat. ~ And I'm
18 curious to hear more about when you decided to exit the building the second time, the
19 finaltime?
20 A The1 had seen theofficersin lie riotgear like behindthegate, and it
21 seemed ike they were coming towards me, so that's when we lft
2 Q Just behind the gate was thata gate inside the building?
5 A Yeah, down the hallway, like at the end of the hallway, it looked like they
20 were behind like a gate, like a brass gate or somethin | thought
2 Q Were there other people in the crowd who seemed lie they were eager to
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1 stay, perhaps havea conflict with the officers?

2 A mean, Idon't know. | was ~ there was definitely a lot of people between

3 meandthem, and mean, yeah. | feel like, yeah, some people wanted to stay, but|

4 didnt

s Q And whydidn't you want to stay?

6 A Iwas not confrontational, not violent or anything. So, yeah.

7 Q And, at that point, were you aware that the certification had been delayed?

5 A No,notat that time.

9 Q 0 you decided to get out of there with Mr. Lyon before things got more

10 confrontational. Is that fai to say?

1 A Right. Yeah.

2 Q And did you try to take anything with you as you were leaving?

13 A Yeah. grabbed that coat rack by the door and tookit out. And then.

1 a so

15 A and then the radio | thought were walkie-talies, | guess. 1 found out

16 they were - they translate languages or something, but | thought they were

17 walkie-talkiesatthe time,

18 Q  Sothe coat rackis fairly large, correct?

19 A Correct.

2 Q guess Imcurious about why you wantedto tryto take that fromthe room?

2 A thought t was like a big enough thing and people would see me with it,

22 and, | mean, it looked like a trophy or think kind of being like, yeah, | was in there, and |

23 gotthis kind ofa thing, so.

2 Q So you thought that entering the Capitol was an achievement of sorts that

25 was worthy ofa trophy?
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1 A Correct.

2 Q Andwhy wasthat?

3 A ljust-it seemed like that was, | guess, like kind of the end goal by, you

4 know, togoinand get out and it seemed like that was what people wanted.

5 Q  ~goin-goahead.

6 A Yeah,no,just. Yeah, just seemed like that was the goal, was to get in and

7 getoutand have like a trophy or a souvenirto prove it.

8 Q Getinand get out andalsodelay the certification. Isthat correct?

9 A Yeah. That was that was part of it.

10 Q  Sowouldit have been a trophy to show that you had followed the

11 President's orders?

2 A Yeah

13 Q And, obviously, the coat rackis a fairly large object that iti sort of

14 potentially pretty heftyifit's wielded against someone.

15 Was there a sense you would be using it as a weaponor needed it for

16 self-defense?

7 A No. Honestly, Itookit once | got outside, put it ina bush and just said |

18 was, you know, putting it back where it came from. Then Robert stayed there and

19 wanted tosit down for awhile, and so | just left him and the coat rack there and went

20 back to watching what was going on outside.

2 Q Why did you decide to leaveyour trophy behind?

2 A 1-itwas cumbersome, didn'twanttocarryit. Yeah.

23 Q And, when you were back outside the - on the lawn of the Capitol, what was

24 the scene like at that point?

2 A There was still people were going out different doors. | saw like
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1 confrontations with the police. ~ People were throwing things and pepper-spraying.

2 People were still trying to get in other doors.

3 Q Was there law enforcement there outside?

a A Yeah. Like at the top of the steps and behind other doors, yeah, people

Ss were fighting with law enforcement.

s Q Wasi stil your sense that other people were now trying to get their chance

7 tofollow the President's orders and go inside the building?

5 A Yes

° Q  Atthat point, were you concerned about what the President had asked you

10 todo?

1 A I don't know f that was my thought. | knew what was happening was bad,

12 butl-itwaskind of lie a carwreck or something; you can't look away.

3 Q  Itwas bad, but did you think it was justified at that point?

1a A No. No.

15 Q So you at some point did't think that the President's directive was a worthy.

16 endeavor.

FY Is that because you saw violence happening outside, or was it just the chaos

18 outside? What changed your mind?

19 A Changed mymind about? Sorry.
2 Q So you had said earlier you went into the Capitol; you werefollowing the

21 President’ orders; you were taking trophy to say "had done that." ~ And then, once

22 you got outside, you just indicated you believed that things had gotten out of hand and

23 thatitwasn'ta good thing.

2 Sowhat changed?

2 A 1--up until that time, | hadn't seen the violence like that, ike there was |
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1 wenttodifferent doors, andI never seen the people trying to fight the police like that

2 untilthattime. And then! realized, like, how it had escalated, what it had escalated to.

3 Q  Thatisa helpful clarification.

a 50 you expressed to us that you went in, and you though the chaos you caused

5 was actually furthering the President's goal of delaying the certification, but it was only

6 when you got outside you saw there was violence involved as well?

7 A Correct.

8 Q Andthat wasalineyoupersonallydrew?

9 A Right. I'mnotaviolent person

10 Q  Butyou still wereunder the impression that this was the consequence of the

11 Presidentsorderto the crowd?

2 A Correct.

13 Q  Atthat point, did you feel anger towards President Trump for essentially

14 ordering these folks into conflict with law enforcement?

15 A Iwouldn't say I was angry. | was more probably just in shock, confused

16 thattime.

7 Q And, when you were outside, you saw the law enforcement officers clashing

18 with what had become rioters. Did you believe that the election certification could still

19 bedelayed?

1) A Yeah. Atthat time, | thought - | didn't see how they could have a

21 certification with people inside the building and that kind of stuff going on outside.

2 Q So you said to us that you learned laterthat the certification had been

23 delayed, and I think you said tof FE]that it had been — you

24 considered it to be a victory when you heard about it, correct?

2 A Yeah



ss

1 Q But that was after you had seen therioters clashing with police,| take it?

2 A Correct. Yeah.

3 Q  So--goahead

a A Yeah. Like, can see how that's conflicting, but t was justa lot to kind of

5 processatthe time. But guess it almost made like the violence justified if that makes

6 sense, but didn't ~ | don't see violence as justified, but | think that that's what the crowd

7 hadto doto get what they wanted, and sothat's what happened.

8 Q So,at the time, you saw the violence as partof an effort that was, in your

9 words, justified?

10 A Yeah, | guess you couldsaythat, yeah

un HE ooEE.
2 [I Tht wos all in your mind directed by the President in an attempt to

13 delay the certification?

1 Mr. Thompson. Correct

15 oIN

16 Q And was part of the justification, you know, aside from the President's order,

17 was part of the justification that it would keep President Trump in power, that delaying

18 the certification would mean that President Trump was stil President?

19 A Yeah. saw that the delayingofthecertification would allow Trump to

20 remain as President at the time.

2 Q Did you think that keeping President Trump in power was in a way to save

22 democracy, to save the country?

2 A dd.

x Q Did you have that belief because you were listening to President Trump for

25 many months before the election and after the election?
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2 Q Thankyou.

, I
4 Q So why did you think that it was necessary for President Trump to stay in

$ office in order to save democracy?

7 Americans if he wasn't to stay in power. | mean, like, | don't know -- people

8 would -- Democrats would take your guns, for example, would happen if he wasn't in

10 Q So those were the kind of fears that weregoing through your mind as you

12 A | just wanted to not lose rights, | guess,didn't want Americansto lose rights.

13 Q And you were worried that would happen if the certification went through

15 A Yeah. |thoughtit could happen, yeah.

16 Q So President Trump's order was then sort of a last ditch effort to keep rights

18 A I'd say like to keep himself in power, but also that, yes.

19 Q Okay. That's really helpful context.

20 Later in that afternoon, President Trump posted a video where he told the

2a protesters at the Capitol to go home.

23 A No. Iwasstill there. 1was unaware of the video, though.

24 Q Okay. So you were on Capitol Grounds?



”

1 Q Sothat videowasquiteacouple of hours later.

2 A Wasit 4:30or something like that|think.

2 a coy
. I «17 tobe exact
s EE ceor oie.

s oI
7 Q So did you do anything -- what were you doing on Capitol Grounds in that

6 contol 2haurinterim?
9 A I made my way up| thinkit's called the tunnel, and | was juststaying there

10 watching that conflict for I'd say an hour or more.

u So vouwere watching othr indus have physical conic with lw
12 enforcement?

13 A Correct. Yeah. You couldn't really see exactly what was going on, but

16 they would go nto the tunel, thy would come backout. There wsobviously fighting
®  gongon
16 Q  Sowhy did you stay? Why did you stick around?

uv A mean, guess 1a curious, and did't «| dt know maybe that the
18 election had been -- or the certification had happened and -- because -- | don't know why

19 stayed. |was kind of maybe just in shock, couldn't takemyeyesoffwhat|was seeing.

20 Q So you said you weren't sure if the certification had happened.

2a Does that mean that you kind of still thought this was part ofa greater effort that

22 Prsiten Trump had been asking supporters to partideate in?
23 A I'm sorry. Could you repeat that?

24 Mr. Stewart. Sorry. I'm coughing.

® oc
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2 Q So you said you weren't sure if the certification had happened while you

4 A I wasn't sure if it had been delayed.

5 Q Right. Right. Okay. So did you still believe that the conflicts you were

9 Q Okay. So you were still part ofthat broader senseof achievement that was

10 ‘motivating you to take the coat rack and that sort of thing?

13 Q And, Mr. Thompson, sounds like you were outside the tunnel for about an

15 and 4:30 at the tunnel. Officers were dragged out. Officers were tazed. Officers

16 were getting beat with all sorts of weapons like hockey sticks and flagpoles and crutches.

18 A Yeah. |mean, it looked bad. What | sawwas very intense. Yeah. Kind

19 of blurry, but yeah, it was lots of violence.

23 Q Okay. And, backJearlier question, at the time, you believed

25 the certification?
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1 A Correct.

2 Q Thankyou.

3 oI
. a ndso, ating onJIeves,tv pons, osebee
5 that there is conflict between police officers and rioters?

5 A Correct

7 Q And that's obviously pretty self-evidently criminal behavior, correct?

8 A Correct.

9 Q  Solamjust curious about yourdecision to stay in thevicinitygiventhatthis

10 had escalated from chaos and vandalism to now assaulting law enforcement?

n A Yeah. Idon't really know why |stayed,but just | guess| just wanted to

12 see what was going to keep happening.

13 Q Did you think that the rioters clashing with law enforcement were on your

6 side?

15 A That the rioters were? Yeah.

16 Q Yeah.

7 A guess, yeah.

18 Q Because you were all on President Trump's side?

19 A Correct

20 Q And, while you were watching, were you rooting for them, cheering for them

2 audibly?

2 A No. Imean-no. Honestly, just feel lie my mouth wasprobablywide

23 open, and | was just staring. But yeah, | wasn't chanting or had any reaction.

2 Q Was the crowd reacting?

2s A Yeah. I mean, it seemed - like | knowI saw someone passupikea adder,
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1 andthen the crowd passed it back. But it seemed like most people were just watching

2 Q  Atthat point, you still felt no anger towards President Trump or regret that

3 youhad gone?

a A Iwasntupset that| had gone at that point. | guess | was upset with what|

5 wasseeing.

s Q But you said earlier you sill kindof thought it was partof the same effort,

7 evenif it was something you were not willing to participate in, correct?

5 A Correct.

° Q  Tostop the certification?

10 A Correct.

n Q So eventually you made the decision toleave the Capitol Grounds. Was.

12 that related to the President's tweet at 4:30?

13 A No. My phone had died, and | had been shutting it off to try and save what

14 little battery I had. So hadn't seen that. Iwas — real quick, though, | did send a text

15 at4:05toRobert. He was, I believe, sil lke sitting down, and said: I'm going back in.

16 Everyoneinterprets that to mean that | was going back in the building. ~ And just

17 meant that | was going back into the crowd and I'd probably get separated from him.

1 But, at 6, a ttle before 6, heard about the curfew and then that area where |

19 was standing, the officers came out and tear-gassed everybody, and like it was -- |

20 couldn't breathe, and everyone left. And that's when, you know, started trying to

21 figure a way to get home or back to the hotel.

2 Q Ando, at that point, you were separated from Robert?

2 A Yeah. We had met back down at the - like he had texted me like

24 somewhere where he was at, and we met up, yeah.

2 Q Okay. Soyoufled the Capitol. And how did you end up getting
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1 back like leaving D.C.2

2 A Weleft D.C. the next morning.

3 Q Oh, sorry. I meant, like, you were staying in Maryland. How did you get

4 away from the immediate vicinity of the Capitol?

5 A We had stopped on - | didn't know where we were. | had ordered an

6 Uber, and then my phone died. So we were staying at the spot where | told the Uber to

7 come. Andofficers approached and said that we couldn't wait for theUber there. And

8 then, when they noticed the coat rack, they wanted me to stop and talk to them. |

9 just~1tookoff running because | - after seeing the altercations and beingpast curfew, |

10 knew wasn't supposed to be there, wasn't supposed to have a coat rack. Sol just ran

11 and ended up getting to the hotel, and getting an Uber from there back to my other

12 hotel

13 Q So, just trying to understand, apologize if | missed this. You did end up

14 taking the coat rack from where you had left it in the bushes?

15 A Right. Yeah. We went backand got it at the end of the night.

16 Q  Thisis, again, as a souvenir, not as a crude weapon of sorts?

1” A Correct.

18 Q Whenthe officers approached you, you said you were fearsome because of

19 the altercations.

20 Could you describe what was going through your mind when they approached

21 you? Did you think you had done something wrongatthat point?

2 A No. So, first, they told us to not be there and like pointed us where to go

23 and we started walking. And then we got 50, 100 feet away, and they wanted us to stop.

24 and come back and talk to them. And that's when | took off running,

2 Q Okay. So,atfirst, they didn't ask you if you had been in the Capitol or
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1 anything like that?

2 A No.

3 Q And you were still wearing the bulletproof vest at that point?

a A twas

s Q Did Mr. Lyon take off running with you?

6 A Hedidnot

7 Q  Butdid you meet up with him lateron that night at the hotel?

5 A Yes

9 Q So you ended up leaving the next morning or that night?

10 A The next morning.

n Q And, obviously, that night, news coverage all over, online, on cable news was

12 about the attack on the Capitol and the subsequent delay of the certification.

13 What was your reaction to seeing that once it was all over national news?

1a A Honestly, | didn't really I was still probablyprocessing everything, but just

15 remember hearing that the ~ they came back to certify it at like around 8, and | went to

16 sleep shortyafter that.

7 Q Was that disappointing?

1 A No. Imean, figured it would happen, but like - so, no, it wasn't

19 disappointing, but | was kind of more thinking about what had happened during the day

20 and how I might be in trouble honestly.

2 Q So, at that point, the sort of hope that the certification could be delayed and

22 President Trump could be able to remain in office, that had faded from the forefront of

23 your mind?

2 A Right. It was more self-preservation at that point.

2 Q  Gotit. Anddoyou remember that night feeling anything in particular
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1 towards President Trump as you shifted into, as you said, self-preservation mode?

2 A No. Iwasn't like thinking about anything that night for a while, honestly.

3 just wanted to start trying to distance myself, | guess, from the whole situation, and kind

4 offigure out like what | who | had become and what was | doing.

5 Q Sol am curioustojust return to the shift that you had because when — it

6 seems like, when you were entering the Capitol, you - and even as you were watching

7 some of the violence, even though you didn't participate, you saw it as part of a singular

8 mission that the President had directed the crowdto go to the Capitol to try to delay the

9 certification, and you stayed at the site of theconflictfor hours - which fai to say you

10 were not sort of ashamed to be there at that time, correct?

u A Comect.

2 Q  Sowhen did you start to feel like you needed to distance yourself, and then

13 why?

14 A I mean, just having time to process what had happened, you know, and

15 thinking about who | am and who | wanted to be and not someone who contributes to

16 thatkind of behavior, you know, wants to be associatedreallywith that kind of behavior.

7 Q  So,at the that point, you no longer believed that it was justified?

18 A Correct. Yeah.

19 Q And would you say that was because there was news media putting it in

20 broader context, the Capitol had been attacked, that sort of thing?

2 A Itprobably, I'm sure, factored into it guess, but like the hope that it was

22 more of maybefora self-reflection kindof a thing. But, | mean, obviously, hearing

23 about, you know, how bad it was and, you know, that | was a part of it didn't make me

24 feel good.

2 Q And when you say how bad it was, are you referring to sort of the injuries
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1 thatwere—
2 A Violence. Yeah.

3 Q incurred?
s A Correct.
5 Q  Butstill not as much the sort of political implications to what you had done;

6 youstillhad been pleased that the certification was delayed?
7 A Imean, not really because | mean it still happened like pretty soon after.

8 So it seemed like a, you know, whatever senseof a small victory there was short-lived, |

9 guess, and it obviously the —- you know, the means didn't justify the end, you know, so.

10 Q That's what you felt at that point?

u A Right
12 Q Allright. Well, we've been goingfor about an hour, and we do have some

13 wrap-up questions on sort of the aftermath of the 6th, but if you want to take another

14 Sminute break, we could come backat 11:12, and then we can wrap up about another
15 half hour?

16 Mr. Stewart. That'sfine.

w I chi. Great. Thank youvery much.
18 We can go off the record at 11:07.

19 [Recess.]

20 I ve cangobackon the recordat 11:13 am.

2 |

23 Q Back to the 4:17 tweet, Mr. Thompson. | know your phone was dead.

24 Was anyone else around you talking about President Trump telling rioters to go home?
x A Ido think! heard about t from other people, but it was kind of convoluted,
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1 and there was like a sentiment of the crowd that didn't believe it|feel like, and yeah.

2 Like! had heard about it, but -

3 Q Did and just to follow up, you didn't get the sense that people were

4 turning on their heels and leaving who had heard the tweet?

5 A Correct.

6 Q Also, at 2:24, early in the afternoon, President Trump tweeted basically that

7 Vice President Pence didn't have the courage to do what was necessary or what President

8 Trump wanted him to do, which was stop the certification.

° Were you aware of that tweet at that time?

10 A No,lcan't say | was.

u Q Did youhear anybody talkingabout that tweetorclaiming Vice President

12 Pence didn't have the courage to do anything?

13 A 1did hear people say like Pence let us down and Pence is a traitor or stuff

14 likethat. Yeah, Idid hear that. didn't really know what it was reference to, but|felt

15 people had turned on him kind of.

16 Q Okay. Thankyou.

1” And then you're still around the Capitol at 6 p.m. So, at 6 p.m., President Trump

18 tweets again, more or less saying, go home, this is a glorious day, remember it forever, in

19 asort of celebratory tweet of what happened on January 6th.

20 Were you aware of that tweet?

21 A lwasnot.

2 Q Okay. Thankyou. And this next question jumping way back

23 Before President Trump starting talking about election fraud issues, talking about

24 the possibility ofa stolen election, was election fraud even a political issue that you cared

25 about?
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1 A Like, the word now is like voter integrity, but at the time | just —- it's not

2 something | really thought about. But, | mean, | wanted to know that elections were e—Lo
< Q Great. Thank you very much.

RL., -
8 Q And, Mr. Thompson, | wanted to fast forward to current day.

9 Looking back on January 6th and the events of that day, what are your thoughts

10 about what happened?a
12 know, ashamed of my participation init. And, yeah, just how to be better in the future, |Loees
15 A Not get yeah, myself. Yeah, not, you know, end up in situations like that.

16 Q Do you still believe that marching and entering the Capitol was an effectiveLn
18 A No, ldon't.

19 Q But do you still believe that was what the President wanted you to do that

20 day?

2a A ldo.reson
23 A Yeah. [feel kind of —- more or less, you know, used as a pawn, you know,LeLo
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1 A ljust--you know, someone else's game. | don't really know what the end

2 goalwas.

3 Q Well, you've said a couple times throughout this interview that there was a

4 stillahope that President Trump would remain in power, so do you think that waswhat

5 wasgoingon?

6 A Yeah. To--yeah. Tohold onto powerwas the goal, and |felt like | was.

7 usedtogettothatend.
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1

2 [sam]

3 oI
4 Q Even thought failed

5 A Correct.

6 Q So, kind of relatedly, have your feelings towards President Trump changed

7 since that day?

8 A Theyhave. Like, really, all towards politics. But for him, like, just kind of

9 tryand put him -- put it out my mind, put it behind ~ like, not give it any attention. And

10 right now feel best, but, like,|mean, there's probably some animosity there, but it's also

11 with myself, which is kindof where I'm at right now.

2 Q Could you expand on that more? You said there's some animosity?

13 A I mean, I'm upset that, like, you know, feel like he told people to come

14 there, and then, like, the arrests, and, you know, now I'm here. just -- yeah, this stuff's

15 outof-

16 Q  Isitfairto say you felt misled?

1” A Correct. Yes.

18 Q On that same line of questioning, do you still believe that the 2020

19 Presidential election was stolen?

20 A No,idonot.

2 Q  Sothe issues of voter fraud, allegations of ballots being improperly counted,

22 you don't believe that is what actually happened?

23 A No,ldonot.

2 Q What changed your mind about that?

2 A I've just seen, like, the evidence and the debunking. Like, they've gone
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1 through them all and explained how, like, what you saw, what you thought was

2 mishandling of ballots was actually how, like, things go. And, like, the, you know, call to

3 Georgia to find votes was just really bad. You know, like, doesn't make sense, but -

4 Q Uh-huh. So--oh, go ahead.

5 A Just working - I'm working with therapy, a therapist about, you know, the

6 ind of deprogramming and learning where | went wrong with conspiracy theories and

7 believing, like ~

8 Q So why do you think you were so drawn to those theories in 20207

9 A feel like therewas alot of factors. | believed them before, but, now, with

10 kindofjust being laidoffand being home alone, drinking more, | just kind of went into a

11 badplace withit at thattime, and just kind of everything kind of built up to January 6th.

2 Q Yeah. That'shelpful. So some of what the President was saying about the

13 election, in your mind, was syncing up with the personal turmoil in your life?

1a A Yeah. Yeah,that'sfairtosay.

15 a soyou said to MMthat you didn't really care about election integrity,

16 voter fraud issues as a salient part of American life before President Trumpbrought these

17 tothe forein 2020.

1 Weobviously just had another election, and there were claims that things had

19 gone fraudulently there too. Were you still concerned about fraud this time around?

1) A No. I'mnot even really aware of what happened with this election. I'm --

2 a okay.

2 A distancing myself from politics altogether.

23 Q 50 what do you make ofPresident Trump's continuing claims that the

24 election was stolen? He is still obviously saying it.

2 A I mean, I feel like he's wrong, but his | feel ike his egowon't allow him to
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1 admit

2 Q And we talked a ot today about the violence that you saw and, sort of, the

3 conflict with law enforcement that you were quite near.

a Are you concerned about future potential for violence in American politics, similar

5 towhat we saw on January 6th?

6 A Yeah. Yes. Like, yeah, I fear it could happen again

7 Q Do youthink that it could happen againforany particular reason?

5 A I mean, no, not particularly. Just, | feel like, you know, once there's kind of

9 a precedent for something ike that, that i's more likely to happen again.

10 Q Are you concerned that President Trump's current latest run for the White

11 House could stoke that sort of violence?

2 A Yeah. Yeah,lam.

3 Q And, just last month, there was an attack on Speaker Pelosi's husband. And

14 the man who attacked him was crying out, "Where is Nancy? I'm lookingfor Nancy,"

15 when he entered their house. And he has admitted that he was trying to find her and

16 “make her answer for her lies."

FY Does that, to you, seem ike part of the same pattern of what you saw on

18 January 6th?

19 A Yeah. feel like there's, you know, lie, psychological manipulation that's

20 leading to violence, basically, like, and it's more prevalent now because of January 6th.

2 Q Who do you blame for that?

2 A think Trump.

2 Q And so, just to underscore, you went to January 6th because the President

24 told you t was going to be a wild time, correct?

2 A Yeah. Correct.
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1 Q And you had no plans to march to the Capitol until thePresidentdirected

2 youto, correct?

3 A Correct

a Q And you did not think that there was a chance that the election results could

5 be delayed intheircertification until the President suggested that was the case?

6 A Correct

7 Q And you saw entering the Capitol as part of the President's order to you and

8 thecrowd?

9 A Correct. Yeah.

10 Q And you even saw someofthe violence between rioters and law

11 enforcement as other individuals following the President's orders, correct?

2 A Yes

3 Q Andafter you'd seen the violence and you hadseen thevandalism at the

14 Capitol, when you learned that the certification had indeed been delayed, you celebrated,

15 right?

16 A Right

7 Q And that was because you saw it as successfully carrying out the President's

18 orders?

19 A Yes. Yep.
2 Q And now you remain worried that former President Trump could call up

21 people to violence again?

2 A Yes

2 Q So, given that that's pretty concerning picture. What do you think that

24 we could be doing differently as a country to prevent such violence from recurring?
2 A Imean,Ithink it probably starts with education,youknow, lie, making
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1 people aware of, you know, psychological manipulation and, like — it's like, | call it, like,

2 self-fulfilling algorithms. Like, on the internet, when you search for something and it

3 sees you~ like, the algorithm sees you "ike" itor interact with t, then i gives you more
4 of that. And so it kind of — like, positive reenforcement, self-fulfilling, you know, rabbit

$ hole, you know, people can go down. And just educating people on, you know, the

6 triggers tolook out for, | guess conspiracy theories, you know.
7 Q Do youstill interact with QAnon conspiracy theories at all?
8 A No. No
5 Q  1als0 wanted to ask quickly, you currently have a casepending with the
10 DepartmentofJustice, correct?

1 A Correct
12 Q And could you just walk us through the status of that case?

3 A Ihave a sentencing on Friday.
1 a oy.
15 Well, 1 want weve[IRand[IR= chance vo ask any other

16 questions, but really do appreciate the thoughts that you've just shared
w But, before | hand it over to them, we covered alot today. Is there anything that
18 we missed that you think it's important for us to know?

19 A I mean, just the main message would be, like, you know, people who

20 promote conspiracy theories can lead to events like January 6th, and no one wants that.
n Q Thankyou
2 Atvight. 11 hand it over tJER+~<IE

2 -I
» just wanted to follow up on ne thing oo [Jerre whichis
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1 that, | don't know if you saw, but yesterday Mr. Trump announced that he was gonna be

2 running for President again. And you mentioned that you would be concerned about

3 the potentforviolence
a I'm curious, because a couple of months ago Mr. Trump mentioned that he would

5 give full pardons and a full apology to people who stormed the Capitol on January 6th if

§  hewereockcted Present, and Vas wondering you araresto tot.
7 A I'm not holding my breath. Like, | don't -- 1 don't think it'll happen.

8 Q  Whyis that?

9 A Idon't think he's gonna be reelected. And I'm not even sure that he would

10 do that if he was.

u Q Whydoyouthink hat he wouldnt follow upon that?
12 A It'shard to explain. |guess | just don'tthink that hereallycares.

13 Q  Canlask whatledyouto think that?

1 A stocking backor how he rats people and, you know, ike, how he ind
15 ofjust uses people, | don't feel like he cares.

16 Q Are there examples in how you've felt since January 6th that point to that?

17 A Imean, just, like, the fact that he's still carrying on about the lie and, you

18 know, not telling the truth in general. It just doesn't make me think that he's gonna

19 keep his word on anything.

PB a Gott
2 And you mentioned that you don't think he'll get reelected. Can | ask why?

2 A Ifeel like everyone's just too divided, and it's not good for anybody, and I

23 just don't see him being able to unite people, support them.

24 Q  Gotit.
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2 announced another run yesterday?

a pretty easy for him to call for violence after what's happened in the past, so

5 Q  Gotit. That's really helpful. Thank you.

7 Thompson, for taking the time to speak with us. It helps get all the perspectives. You

” oI
5 a matron itsoecusion va vest. 00

15 officers should be pardoned?

18 And, looking back, what concerns you most about the potential for violence going

23 A That people can be misled like | was, that -- and that, you know, it's

25 people, like, lower people, but the people who, like, kind of orchestrate the violence
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1 arent held accountable.

2 Q Do you think President Trump should be held accountable?

3 A believe so, yes.

a I ro vou. don't have any other further questions at his

5 point. And thankyouforyourtimetoday.

5 And ths interview can stand in

s o I
9 Q Just very quickly, Mr. Thompson, what would that accountabilityfor the

10 former Presidentlook like?

n A For him to, you know, admit it and, you know, probably have to serve some

12 kind of time like everybody else does, you know?

13 Q Thankyou.

14 A Uhhuh

15 |RO

16 Allright. Seeing nofurther questions, this interview can stand in recess, subject

17 tothe call of the chair, and we can go off the record at 11:34 am.

18 [Whereupon, at 11:34 a.m., the interview was recessed, subject to the call of the

19 chair)
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